
 1 

CITY OF ANOKA 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

 MEETING MINUTES  
JULY 14, 2016 

 
Call to Order:  Chairperson Kelly called the EDC meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. at Anoka 
City Hall, 2015 First Avenue North in the City of Anoka. 
 
Roll Call:  EDC Members present were:  Tracy Kelly, Gary Fahnhorst, Jason Peters, 
Andy Peterson, Tom Redmann, and Kelsey Swokowski (7:32 p.m.).  EDC members 
absent were: Jerry Cotten, Dr. Gene Dvoracek, and Jessica Thunder. Staff present: 
Deputy Community Development Director Doug Borglund and Associated Planner 
Chuck Darnell. 
 
Approval of Minutes:  MOTION BY COMMISSIONER FAHNHORST, SECONDED 
BY COMMISSIONER REDMANN, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 12, 
2016 EDC MEETING, AS PRESENTED.  MOTION CARRIED.  
 
Mr. Borglund noted that the recorder only picked up his voice the previous month and 
therefore there are some gaps in the minutes.  He stated that there was not a quorum 
present at the meeting and therefore the brief minutes will be sufficient.  
 
Commissioner Swokowski arrived. 
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst stated that he was the Acting Chair for this meeting and 
believed the minutes to be accurate.  He stated that in reference to the highlighted items 
he would leave the “Commission discussion” as is and for the motion to adjourn he noted 
that the motion was made by Commission Thunder and seconded by Commissioner 
Dvoracek. 
 
It was noted that the June 9th minute approval would be delayed until additional 
Commissioners are present that were at the meeting. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Projects Update:  Mr. Borglund noted that a list of current construction projects was 
listed in the last Commission packet, noting that he could answer any questions the 
Commission may have.  He stated that Walker is moving ahead and going well, VOA 
held their groundbreaking, the new City Hall parking lot was recently used for River Fest, 
and the Gladstone project hopes to start later this year.  
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst stated that he has seen construction on the new Riverplace site 
and asked when you would see anything done at the Ferry Street location. 
 
Mr. Borglund replied that the business will utilize the current facility on Ferry Street until 
the new site is move in ready.  



 2 

 
Mr. Darnell stated that he believed the plan is to demolish most, if not all, of the existing 
Riverplace buildings along Ferry Street. 
 
Mr. Borglund stated that some of the footings may be left in place for riverbank 
stabilization. 
 
Business Visit List 2016:  Mr. Borglund stated that he would appreciate input from the 
Commission as to businesses that the Commission would like to visit. 
 
Chairperson Kelly stated that a list was created the previous year of possibly businesses.  
He volunteered to assist in the process, noting that a Subcommittee created the list based 
on projects going on in the community and businesses that had not been visited for some 
time.  He stated that the list could be revisited and reviewed. 
 
Commissioner Peterson agreed that the list should be re-evaluated and perhaps some 
local businesses that are involved in the leadership of Discover Anoka should be visited 
to help provide that introduction to Mr. Borglund.  He stated that perhaps some members 
of ABLA would be helpful as well. 
 
Mr. Borglund stated that he attended the May and June ABLA meetings but noted that he 
could also attend a Discover Anoka meeting. 
 
Commissioner Peterson stated that meeting with some of those business owners in person 
outside of a meeting would also be beneficial.   
 
Commissioner Redmann stated that businesses that have shifted to a more prime location 
would also be beneficial to provide input on the process and whether they see a benefit 
from the move.   
 
Chairperson Kelly stated that there should be a clear purpose for the visits in order to 
make the meeting count.   
 
Mr. Borglund agreed that the focus should be on quality rather than quantity.   
 
Chairperson Kelly stated that he would like to start with the list that was created the 
previous year and suggested that the Business Visit Subcommittee review that list.   
 
Use of Public Sidewalk and Public Space Update: Mr. Borglund stated that the City 
Council held a workshop at the end of June to discuss public sidewalks and use of public 
space.  He explained that currently merchandise can be displayed within three feet of the 
building area within the downtown area but noted that there are additional items that 
show up.  He stated that the direction was to include the other items being utilized 
(seating, benches, planters) and include suggestion for those items.  He stated that the 
other discussion focused on outside seating that may involve alcohol and noted that there 
are different regulations for that because of the alcohol.  He advised that the Council 



 3 

provided direction for staff to follow in order to create possible ordinance language to 
allow that type of use with regulation. 
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst asked if staff is using the ordinances of other cities as guides. 
 
Mr. Borglund confirmed that this will be a matter of research and then fitting the 
language to what would work within Anoka. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
 
Coop vs. Condo – Robin Krueger from Hearth Development/Gladstone:  Mr. Borglund 
introduced Robin Krueger from Hearth Development which is involved in the Gladstone 
project. 
 
Robin Krueger stated that this is an exciting time as they are getting close to the time of 
development.  She explained that cooperatives do pre-marketing because of the type of 
financing used.  She stated that a mailing list is purchased for a five-mile radius around 
the development site and noted that there are 13,000 seniors in the City of Anoka.  She 
explained that a cooperative is structured in a way that everything inside and outside is 
maintenance free.  She stated that if an appliance breaks the cooperative replaces that 
item.  She explained that when people buy into a cooperative they purchase a share which 
gains a one percent amortization per year which means that people are not losing money 
while they are living in the cooperative and will receive those funds when they sell their 
share.  She noted that there are also amenities (exercise room, guest room, woodshop, and 
craft room) and community events.  She provided additional details on the share and 
purchase process.  She explained that a cooperative is not memory care or assisted living 
but vibrant seniors that want to sell their home and travel or have less maintenance 
responsibilities.  She stated that there is a monthly fee that includes additional aspects 
such as the mortgage, internet, lawn service and several other elements.  She explained 
that there is a Board composed of members and the management company would then 
negotiate for the service and maintenance contracts.   
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst asked if there would be capital gains. 
 
Ms. Krueger stated that she is unsure but will follow up with that answer. 
 
Chairperson Kelley confirmed that when people buy into the cooperative they pay the 40 
percent of the value of their unit and then pay a monthly fee each month for the 40 years.   
 
Ms. Krueger stated that when people leave their homes to go into the cooperative a big 
aspect is the safety; that they can leave for months to go to Florida and their unit is 
locked, in a secure building with video cameras and they will not need to worry about 
maintenance.  She explained that the goal is never to pay off the master 40-year 
mortgage, as the building can be refinanced along the way to refinance updates to the 
building.  She clarified that the maintenance and utilities are all bundled together in the 
monthly fee with the exception of electric and landline telephone service.   



 4 

 
Commissioner Fahnhorst asked if people are obtaining loans from the bank to buy into 
the cooperative. 
 
Ms. Krueger stated that some people have enough equity in their homes when they sell to 
simply buy their full 40 percent share.  She explained the process for selling a unit, noting 
that the first step would be to tell the management company that you want to sell and they 
would first ask if any current members would like to move, noting that if there are no 
interested parties there is a waiting list that the Board would go to for a purchaser.   
 
Mr. Darnell asked if sellers then receive their 40 percent share back when they sell. 
 
Ms. Krueger stated that the member would receive their share plus the one percent 
amortization and their portion of the mortgage.  She explained the different between a 
cooperative and a condo.  She stated that in a condo or townhouse everything inside the 
unit is your responsibility while in a cooperative there is no maintenance required.   
 
Commissioner Peterson asked the average span of an owner. 
 
Ms. Krueger stated that the average age for this building is 74 or 75 and some in their 
early 80s, noting that they are all very vibrant people.  She stated that she does meetings 
every single month and is holding one the following Monday at Greenhaven.  She invited 
interested staff and Commissioners to attend to learn more information.   
 
Home Occupation/Accessory Structure Ordinance Update – Chuck Darnell:  Mr. Lee 
introduced Associate Planner Chuck Darnell.  
 
Mr. Darnell stated that recently the City considered a request for a home occupation in a 
carriage house.  He explained that the current code allows for home occupation within a 
home but can be allowed within an accessory structure through an interim use permit.  He 
stated that ultimately the Council denied the request because the use would not be interim 
and then directed staff to review the home occupation and accessory structure ordinances.  
He stated that staff brought back additional options to the Planning Commission and City 
Council and ultimately the decision was made to not change the ordinance as home 
occupation should be allowed within homes but should not compete with the business 
district.  He reviewed some of the discussion and concerns that the Planning Commission 
had regarding this item, specifically the impact that running a business from an accessory 
structure could have on the property, neighboring property owners and community and 
therefore recommends not allowing home occupations in accessory structures.   
 
Mr. Borglund used an example of someone that makes homemade cribbage boards as a 
hobby and then sells ten of them on Craigslist and asked if that would be considered a 
home business. 
 
Mr. Darnell stated that hobbies are allowed and that type of activity would not bring 
business to the home and would not create an impact on the community and therefore 



 5 

would be allowed.  He discussed the cottage food law which species that individuals can 
create food in their home and sell directly to individuals, using the example of a farmers’ 
market.  He noted that item will be considered by the Planning Commission and staff will 
recommend approval of that type of small scale food production in the home.   
 
Chairperson Kelly stated that he agrees that people should not be allowed to run a full 
commercial business on a residential space as that would create unfairness.  He stated 
that he would support the small businesses where people are building handmade things 
like cribbage boards and selling them.  He stated that he would want to see that the 
ordinance is made clear as to what is allowed and what is not; specifically, the difference 
between hobby businesses and a full small business.  He stated that people are becoming 
more entrepreneurial, using the internet, and he would want to ensure that could continue. 
 
Commissioner Peterson stated that the distinction would be the disruption of the 
neighborhood and believed that staff, the Planning Commission, and City Council did a 
great job reviewing the ordinance.  He stated that neighbors tend to help regulate.   
 
Mr. Borglund provided examples, such as a man that had a lawn care business through 
his home where he stored equipment and his five employees reported to each day.  He 
provided another example of a lawn care business where large equipment and piles of 
sand and salt were stored.  He noted that those uses change the character of the property 
and intended use.   
 
Mr. Darnell agreed that perhaps the hobby portion could be further defined.  He noted 
that there is opportunity to run a home business as long as the allowed activity is 
occurring within the dwelling.  He estimated that the item would go before the Planning 
Commission for formal action in August and then would follow to the City Council for 
two readings.   
 
Drug Paraphernalia Ordinance Update – Doug Borglund: Mr. Borglund stated that the 
City is looking to adopt a drug paraphernalia ordinance because there are businesses in 
the community that sell what could be drug paraphernalia.  He stated that the first reading 
will come before the Council the following week.  He stated that a copy of the draft 
ordinance has been sent to businesses with tobacco licenses and retail items that would 
fall into the drug paraphernalia category.  He stated that while some of the products can 
be used with tobacco you could use those materials for drug use.   
 
Commissioner Peters stated that you could make the argument that many household items 
could be used for alternate “drug” type activities. 
 
Chairperson Kelly noted there are states that have voted to allow recreational marijuana 
and asked if the ordinance would change, if that change were made in Minnesota. 
 
Mr. Borglund confirmed that changes to State law would be reacted to by the City and 
ordinances would be updated.   
 



 6 

Chairperson Kelly stated that he visited some of these businesses, noting that while most 
specifically posted that the retail items are specific for tobacco use but another business 
verbally explained that the items are used for marijuana.  He stated that it felt 
uncomfortable and asked if there are standards for that. 
 
Mr. Borglund stated that the City does not have control over the presentation of product 
and perception.  He stated that clearly paints the picture that these materials are used 
outside of tobacco use.   
 
Commissioner Peterson stated that this is a message that the City wants to send and then 
would need to decide after that time whether they would pursue that in court.   
 
Mr. Borglund stated that there is a positive track record with this type of ordinance.  He 
stated that if changes are made in State law, that would be a different discussion.   
 
Celebrate Anoka Day 2016 – Doug Borglund: Mr. Borglund stated that there was a 
meeting that discussed the event at the end of June, noting that the event will be held on 
September 12th.  He encouraged Commissioners to participate and/or encourage business 
owners to participate.  He stated that there has been a downslide in the participation of 
this event and stated that staff is attempting to increase that participation.   
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst stated that the event was previously heavy on economic 
development with golf as a side note but noted that has changed. 
 
Commissioner Peterson agreed that the event was previously business appreciation day 
and was then switched to celebrate Anoka day in order to increase the list of invitees. 
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst stated that after this year’s event the recommendation is that the 
EDC review the event to determine if the event should continue.  He stated that the EDC 
sponsors a hole for the event.   
 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER FAHNHORST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
REDMANN, FOR THE EDC TO CONTINUE TO SPONSOR ONE HOLE FOR THE 
EVENT, AS THE GROUP HAS DONE IN YEARS PAST, WITH THE CITY PAYING 
FOR THE $100 SPONSORSHIP.   
 
Further discussion: Chairperson Kelly stated that if this has been done in years past he 
would agree with it but noted that he is a little uncomfortable saying that the City should 
pay the $100 fee. 
 
Commissioner Fahnhorst stated that the EDC has done this for the past 12 years. 
 
Commissioner Peterson stated that because the EDC sponsors this event perhaps the 
sponsorship should be provided at no charge. 
 
MOTION FAILED 1-5.  (AYES – FAHNHORST) 



 7 

 
The consensus of the Commission is to sponsor a hole but to table action on this item 
until staff can investigate how this has been done in the past, whether the City has paid 
the fee or whether the EDC receives their sponsorship at no cost. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND REPORTS:   
 
Marketing and Communications Updates: 
 

• Discover Anoka: Mr. Borglund stated that notes from the June meeting  
were provided in the packet. 
 
Commissioner Peterson stated that there was a July meeting where the leadership was 
appointed.  He noted that River Fest was very successful this year with 20,000 to 25,000 
people attending, which makes this the second biggest event outside of Halloween.  He 
stated that the group will discuss how to proceed, whether it should continue to grow or 
whether another event should be created.  He stated that Discover Anoka is also pursuing 
additional membership.  He stated that the financial report was reviewed and the budget 
for the next year was approved.   
 

• ABLA – July 2016, no meeting: Mr. Borglund noted that there was not a  
July ABLA meeting. 
 
Commissioner Redmann left the meeting at 9:08 a.m. 
 
MISCELLANEOUS:   
 
Discuss August Agenda: Mr. Borglund stated that perhaps there will be additional 
discussion regarding the City’s liquor store.   
 
Chairperson Kelly stated that he would not be able to attend the August meeting. 
 
Commissioners Fahnhorst and Swokowski replied that they would also not be in 
attendance. 
 
Mr. Borglund replied that he will send out an email to determine if there would be a 
quorum available for that meeting. 
 
2016 EDC Meeting - Cablecast: 
 
Adjournment:  The meeting was adjourned upon a motion by Commissioner Fahnhorst, a 
second by Commissioner Swokowski, and a unanimous vote of those present at 9:10 a.m. 
 
 
Amanda Staple, TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc. 


